
MOUNTAIN LAKES DISTRICT COMMISSIONERS MEETING  
At the District Office with Zoom Access  

August 15, 2023 
*UNAPPROVED*  

 
Call to Order: Commissioner Robert Roudebush called the meeting to order at 6:01pm. 
Roll Call:  Board Members: Bob Long, Mark Johanson and Robert Roudebush present. 

• Public Present In-Person: Brian Loutrel, Dottie Long, Randy Berenson, Mike Bonanno, Alan Li, Roger Brissette and 
Lori Brissette 

• Public Present via Zoom: Ed Rajsteter, Barb & Seth Stanfield, David DiCiccio, Ken Huard, Barbara Keating and Deb 
Regen.  

 
Approval of Minutes: 

• July 17 Regular Meeting: Mark Johanson moved to approve; Bob Long seconded.  Motion passed. 
 
Rules of Conduct Review:  Meeting chair Robert Roudebush reminded all those present of the Meeting Rules of Conduct 
adopted at  a previous meeting.   

 
District Business: 

• Manifests:  Robert Roudebush moved to approve manifests July 18 to August 15, 2023. Mark Johanson seconded and 
motion passed. 

• Financials & Water Bill Report: The Commissioners reviewed the monthly financial reports.  Randy Berenson 
questioned the Facility Operations-Lodge line, noting it seemed over budget.  Kristi Garofalo explained a Lodge picture 
window was damaged by the mowers and the mowing contractor paid for its replacement. The expense to purchase 
and install the new window is included in the line as reported in the financials, but it is offset by the miscellaneous 
income entry from the contractor’s payment.  Kristi Garofalo recommended that five delinquent customers on the Water 
Collection Report receive disconnect notices.  After discussion, Robert Roudebush moved to send the five customers 
disconnect notices.  Mark Johanson seconded and the motion passed.    

 

Public Hearing Date to Accept County ARPA Grant Funds:  Robert Roudebush said MLD received a grant of $40,000 from 

Grafton County’s ARPA funds to be used for water line replacement on Bear Road and opened the public hearing for 

comments on whether to accept the funds.  After the commissioners answered a question about how the grant would be used 

and reported, Robert Roudebush closed the public hearing.  Bob Long moved to accept the Grafton County ARPA Fund 

$40,000 grant to be used for a water line replacement project on Bear Road.  Mark Johanson seconded and the motion 

passed.   

 

Maintenance Update:  Bob Long explained Facility & Water Manager John Mitchell was very busy with FEMA claim work, 

water issues and other projects and was not able to provide a report. Brian Loutrel asked about grass growing near the Upper 

Lake beach, noting it was “in the way”.  Bob Long and John Mitchell will check it out for future action.  Randy Berenson 

asked whether the beaches would be tilled again this season.  Bob Long said the beaches would not be tilled again since there 

are only a couple of weeks left in the season.  

 
Water Committee Update: Ed Rajsteter reported the Committee met on August 3 and shared the following water usage 
numbers for June: the daily high for the month was 41,368 gallons per day; the low was 23,913 gpd and the average daily 
usage for the month was 32,249 gpd.  He also said 73% of the water used came from the infiltration well, the bedrock well 
provided 9%, and 18% was purchased from Woodsville Water & Light.  Ed Rajsteter said the weekly beach E Coli testing 
has been well within state limits, the VLAP testing was done on August 1 and went well, and a suspicious bloom in the 
Lower Lake was checked during VLAP testing and found to be non-hazardous and possibly caused by use of fertilizers on 
nearby lawns.  He said the Committee met with the Asset Management Plan consultants on July 25 for a site visit and a 
project kickoff meeting with the state has been set for Sept. 8.  He reported the “Win with Water” Education Day was held 
Saturday, August 5 with 6-8 people attending.  
 



Planning Board Update:  Robert Roudebush reported the Board met on July 20 and discussed the work done by zoning 
officer Courtney Lantz, noting her enforcement role and the large number of concerns she tracks.  He explained the third 
Notice of Violation step is a “lawyer’s letter” which specifies the violation, details the actions taken to that point and details fines 
if the violation is not resolved.  He noted that in the past a lawyer’s letter has been sufficient to get issues resolved, but legal 
counsel was recently given the go-ahead to ask for an injunction in one violation case and that was the first time MLD had to 
take that step. 
 
Recreation Committee Update: Dottie Long reported Evening on the Lake was held with Haverhill Park & Recreation on 
August 11 and had good weather and a good turnout.  The next event is the end-of-season fireworks on Sept. 2 and they 
will have an Ice Cream Social starting around 7:00PM as people gather for the fireworks.  She read a suggestion from 
Barbara Keating about forming MLD golf teams and possibly having a tournament next year.  After discussion, it was agreed 
that Dottie Long will ask Barbara Keating to head up the golf team project and direct those interested to her.  Dottie Long 
was asked if the Rec Committee needed new members and she replied they were always looking for new members. 
 
Action Items Review:  No report available.  Mark Johanson reported that right before the meeting a draft lease agreement 
from Edge Wireless for a tower in MLD was delivered.  The Commissioners agreed to review for discussion at the next 
meeting and in the meantime, Kristi Garofalo will send the draft agreement to legal counsel for their review. 
 
Old Business:   

• Ad Hoc Pool Key Card Committee Report: Mark Johanson reported on the informational meeting held at the Lodge 
on July 29 to share the results of the pool use survey and hear public comments on the key card project.  He said 18-24 
people attended and there was good discussion. He shared the Committee’s recommendations including using Vermont 
Life Safety to install a key card system and noting MLD needs to update low-voltage wiring, wi-fi and cell coverage, and 
security cameras around the pool as part of the project.  After discussion, it was agreed that Mark Johanson will 
contact VLS for their requirements, then work with John Mitchell to see what is already available. The 
Committee will be responsible to get quotes for the electrical conduit installation, Spectrum Wi-Fi, and security 
lighting and cameras to work according to those requirements. The Commissioners tabled the issue until the 
additional info could be reviewed. 

• Office Tech Project:  Brian Loutrel asked about the office tech upgrade project.  Bob Long said the equipment is ready 
to go and part of the Asset Management Plan project so hopefully after the kickoff meeting in September the project will 
move forward.  Brian Loutrel suggested putting the issue on the agenda to be updated monthly.  Randy Berenson 
suggested sharing a project list with the public and Bob Long said the Maintenance Report had that information.  Randy 
Berenson noted those reports were not available two or three times in the last year.  After discussion, it was agreed 
John Mitchell’s recent work load left him no time for the report, but one should be available for the next meeting. 

 
New Business:   

• Non-Public Minutes: Mike Bonanno asked about the review and release on non-public meeting minutes with a new 
House Bill recently passed.  Bob Long said the new bill is effective 10/3/23 and he is working with legal for clarification 
and to set up an MLD procedure to review and release.  

• Pool Procedures/Possible Consultant: Brian Loutrel asked about staff procedure for opening the pool and Bob Long 
responded that staff members work around the beach until someone arrives at the pool.  Brian Loutrel asked about 
future pool replacement and Bob Long noted a new capital reserve fund was started at the 2023 annual meeting for that 
purpose.  Randy Berenson suggested hiring a pool consultant rather than pool companies to gather information on pool 
type, location, and the best fit for MLD, in order to help make the decision when the time for replacement comes. 

 
Public Comments: NONE 
Board Comments: NONE 

 
Adjournment: Mark Johanson moved to adjourn; Bob Long seconded.  Motion passed and the meeting adjourned at 
7:15pm.  Next meeting: Tuesday, September 12 at 6:00 PM.   Mark Johanson will chair the meeting.  
 
Respectfully submitted,  
Kristi Garofalo 


